KAPLAN, KILSHEIMER & FOX LLP
WILLIAM J. PINLIS

Attorney a Law

237 South Street

Morristown, NJ 07960

(WJIP2130)

Tdl. 973/656-0222

Fax 973/401-1114

Attorney for Plantiff
[Additional counsel appear on Sgnature page]

UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

)
YUNUS DADABHQY, On Behdf of Himsdf ) No.
and All Others Smilarly Situated, )
) CLASSACTION
Plantiffs, )
) COMPLAINT FOR VIOLATION OF THE
VS. ) FEDERAL SECURITIESLAWS
)
NICE SYSTEMS, LTD, BENJAMIN )
LEVIN and YUVAL YANAI, )
)
Defendants. )
) DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

SUMMARY OF THE ACTION
1 Thisisasecurities fraud class action on behaf of personswho purchased NICE Systems,

Ltd. ("NICE Systems' or the"Company™) American Depository Shares (“ADS'S’) between February 16,
2000 and February 7, 2001 (the "Class Period"), againgt NICE Systems and its top two officers for
violations of the federd securities laws arising out of defendants dissemination of fase and mideading
statements concerning the Company's financia results for fiscal 1999 and portions of fisca 2000.

2. NICE Systems, headquartered in Raanana, |sral, describesitsdf asaworldwideleader of
multimediadigita recording solutions, applicationsand related professiond servicesfor businessinteraction
management. NICE products and solutions are used in contact centers, trading floors, air traffic control

(ATC) dtes, CCTV (closed circuit televison) security ingalations and Government markets. NICE's



synergidtic technology platform enables customersto capture, evauate and andyze businessinteractionsin
order to improve busi ness processes and gain competitive advantage. NICE's subsidiariesand local offices
are based in the United States, Canada, Germany, United Kingdom and France. The company operatesin
morethan 60 countriesthrough anetwork of partnersand distributors. NICE Systems' ordinary sharesare
listed on the Te-Aviv Stock Exchange (“TASE”) and its ADS strade on the NASDAQ under the ticker
symbol “NICE.” The Company’s U.S. headquarters are located in Secaucus, New Jersey.

3. During the Class Period, defendants caused NICE Systems to issue materidly false and
mideading financid statements for fiscal year 1999 and the firgt three quarters of fiscal 2000. Defendants
improperly recognized materia amounts of revenue, in violaion of Generaly Accepted Accounting
Principles (“*GAAP’), on among other things, consgnment “sdes’ where revenue should not have been
recogni zed.

4, Defendants " cooked" NICE Systems booksin order to report revenues, profitsand growth
rates, which the Company had led the market to believe would be achieved in fiscal 1999 and 2000 and to
inflate the price of NICE Systems ADS's, which were used in two acquisitions during the Class Period
which were both partidly funded with NICE Systems artificidly inflated ADSs.

5. On February 8, 2001, NICE Systems shocked the market when it issued apressrelease
which stated, in part:

NICE Systems (NASDAQ:NICE - news), a worldwide leader of multimedia digita recording

solutions, gpplications and related professiona services for business interaction management,

announced today that it isupdating its estimate of Q4 2000 revenue and related net lossandwill be

restating certain prior periods based on a detailed andyss performed in the course of theyearend
closing process.

Thisandyssincluded the determination of the appropriate timing of revenue recognition relaing to
sdes to Stevens, the distributor whose assets were acquired by NICE in the fourth quarter.
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Specificaly, during the yearend closing process, documents came to the attention of management
indicating thet sales to Stevens should have been treated as " consgnment” sales and the revenue
recognized only upon sdeto the find custiomer. Thisrequires areduction of $6.2 million in 1999
revenue, from $123.6 million to $117.4 million. Of the $6.2 million, $4.4 million has been

recognized in 2000. In turn, $6.6 million in revenue from Stevensin 2000 cannot be recognized.
The net effect on year 2000 revenueis $2.2 million.

In addition to acomplete review of revenue, the Company aso implemented SAB101. Asaresult
of dl thesefactors, revised revenuefor thefirst three quarters of 2000 isexpected to be asfollows:
$34 millioninstead of $37.5 million, $39 million instead of $42.9 million, and $45 millioninstead of
$46.6 million, respectively. Findly, NICE estimatesthat revenuefor dl of 2000 will be $154 million
and Q4 revenue will be approximately $36 million. On December 28th, the Company announced
that Q4 2000 revenue was expected to be $39 to $40 million.

The Company indicated that it will take some additiona time to caculate the related adjusments
required to each period's net income, and the revised figures will be available when find audited
resuts for Q4 and full year 2000 are announced. NICE aso announced that Benny Levin has
resgned as Chairman, but remains as adirector of the Company. The Board of Directors expects
to name anew chairman shortly. (Emphasis added).

6. Because of defendants fraudulent practices, NICE Systems ADSstraded at artificidly
inflated prices throughout the Class Period. On February 8, 2001 when the Company announced that its
financid resultsfor fisca year 1999 and thefirgt three quarters of fiscal 2000 would require restatement due
to the improper recognition of revenue, the price of NICE Systems ADSsfel amost 30% in one day on

heavy trading volumeto $13.10. The stock has not recovered.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
7. The clams asserted herein arise under 8810(b) and 20(a) of the SecuritiesExchange Act of

1934 (1934 Act"), 15 U.S.C. 8878j(b) and 78t(a), and Rule 10b-5. Jurisdictionisconferred by 827 of

the 1934 Act, 15 U.S.C. §78aa



8. Venue is proper here pursuant to 827 of the 1934 Act. NICE Systems, athough
headquartered in Isradl, hasits U.S. headquartersin Secaucus, New Jersey and the acts and transactions

giving rise to the violations of law complained of occurred here.

THE PARTIES
0. Paintiff Y unus Dadabhoy purchased NICE Systems ADS s as detailed in the attached

certification and was damaged thereby.

10. Defendant NICE Systemsdescribesitself asaglobd provider of integrated digital recording
and qudity management solutions. NICE's solutions help customersimprove their business by effectively
recording, storing, evauating and managing voice communications, call data, desktop screens and video.
NICE serves the business needs of multiple markets, primarily financid ingitutions, customer contact
centers, arr traffic control (ATC) stes, public safety centers, and closed circuit televison (CCTV) security
ingdlaions. NICE aso develops and provides voice recording and communications intelligence
(COMINT) systems for government agencies. NICE's corporate headquarters are based in Isragl with
subsdiary companies and locdl offices in the United States, Canada, Germany, United Kingdom and
France. NICE sordinary sharesare listed on the TASE and its ADS strade on the NASDAQ under the
ticker symbol “NICE".

11. (3 Defendant Benjamin Levin (“Levin”) served as chairman of theboard and CEO of
NICE Systems from 1998 until January 2001. A co-founder and director, Levin previoudy served as
president of the Company from its inception in 1986 to 1998. Levin did not serve as NICE Systems
President and CEO fromMay 1, 2000—May 30, 2000, but resumed his CEO position and dutieson May

31, 2000. Levinresgned asCEO of NICE Systemseffective January 2001. On February 8, 2001, Levin



announced that he was dso resigning his position as Chairman of NICE System’'s Board of Directors.
Defendant Levin signed NICE Systems' False Report on Form 20-F.

(b) Defendant Yuva Yana (*Yana”) was NICE Systems Senior Vice President and
Chief Financid Officer from April 1998 until he |eft the Company in December 2000.

12.  Thepatiesligedin 11 (a) — (b) arereferred to asthe " Individua Defendants.” They are
liablefor the false statements pleaded herein at 1 13, 15, 16, 18, 19, 22, 25-27, 29, 20, 32, 34, asthose
gtatements were each "group-published” information for which they were collectively responsible. The
Individua Defendants, by reason of their participation in the day to day affairsof NICE Systemsand stock
ownership and positionswere controlling persons of NICE Systems. NICE Systems controlled each of the

Individual Defendants. These controlling persons are liable under §20(a) of the 1934 Act.

FALSE AND MISLEADING STATEMENTS
DURING THE CLASSPERIOD

13.  On February 16, 2000, NICE Systems issued a press release entitled, “NICE Systems
Announces Record Fiscd Year and Fourth Quarter 1999.” The press rel ease stated, in part:

NICE SystemsLtd. (NASDAQ: NICE), aleading globa provider of digita recording and qudity
management solutions, today reported that 1999 revenuesincreased 36 percent to arecord $123.6
million, compared with $91 million in 1998. Net income for the year, excluding one-time charges,
reached $20.3 million, or $1.65 per share (diluted), compared with net income of $13.5 million,
excduding one-time charges, or $1.12 per share (diluted) for the previous yesar.

For thefourth quarter, revenuesincreased 56 percent to an all-time high of $36.6 million, compared
with $23.4 million for the same quarter of 1998. Net income for the quarter, net of a one-time
charge of $5.2 million resulting from the acquisition of STS Software Ltd., reached $7.1 million or
$0.56 per share (diluted) compared with net income of $2.1 million or $0.19 per share (diluted) for
the fourth quarter of 1998.

The gross profit margin continued to improve, reaching 58.2 percent. Operating profit aso
improved, reaching 16.4 percent. Operating activities continued to generate cash, and DSO (days
sdes outstanding) sharply declined to 116 days.
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Commenting on the record fourth quarter and 1999 results, NICE chairman, Benny Levin, said:
"These results reflect the strongest quarter and best year ever for NICE. Our successin providing
customerswith powerful, high qudity solutions has strengthened our leadership positioninthefast-
growing contact center market. Saes to this market have increased substantidly, particularly in
North Americawith salesto the US and Canada generating 60 percent of our overall revenuesin
the fourth quarter. We continue to dominate the high-end of the market, winning prestigious new
reference accounts.”

Levin added, "Our recent dliances with Siebel and Genesys, together with our strong partnerships
with Lucent and Al catel, will enable usto offer cusomersintegrated solutionsfor capturing the total

customer experience and position usasaleading provider of Customer Relationship Management-
CRM solutions for the Web-enabled contact center.

"In the CCTV security market, we are seeing an increase in orders for our NICEVision digita
video and audio recording solution inthe mid to high-end market, in linewith our expectations, and
we are encouraged by the positive market response.” (Emphasis added).

14.  Thispressrelease was materidly fase and mideading. The Company has now admitted
that these results overstated revenues for fisca 1999 by at least $6.2 million. The overstatement was
caused by, among other things, the improper recognition of materid amounts of revenue on contingent
“sdes’ inviolation of GAAP.

15.  OnFebruary 23, 2000, NICE Systemsissued apressrel ease announcing its acquisition of
CenterPoint Solutions, Inc., a company based in Denver, Colorado. According to the release:

NICE Systems Ltd. (Nasdag: NICE) today announced it has signed a definitive agreement to

acquire CenterPoint Solutions, Inc., an gpplication developer of Web-enabled solutions for

datigticd tracking, digital recording and automated customer surveys for contact centers.

“This represents another sgnificant step for NICE, paving the way for next-generation customer

relationship management,” said Benny Levin, chairman of NICE Systems. “Our customersneed a

unified and centrdized view of the entire customer experience, and CenterPoint solutions enable

NICE to deliver this.

“For us CenterPoint is a perfect fit. The “cradle-to-grave’ quantitative and qualitetive data

provided by our integrated systems will provide a wedth of information for datamining and
performance evauation of customer relationships within asingle center as well as across multiple
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centers.”

Subject to the closing of the deal, NICE will acquire dl the stock of CenterPoint Solutions for
approximately $3 million in cash and up to 200,000 NICE American Depositary Shares
(ADSs), representing ordinary shares of NICE. The ded is expected to be closed by next
month. (Emphasis added).

16. OnMay 3, 2000, NICE Systemsissued apressrelease entitled, “ NICE Systems 1Q2000
Revenues Up 42 Percent to $37.5 Million, Increased Demand Across All Market Segments.” That release
dated, in part:

NICE Systems Ltd. (NASDAQ: NICE) today reported first quarter 2000 revenues rose 42
percent to $37.5 million compared with $26.5 million for the first quarter of 1999. Net income
increased by amost 100 percent to $6.0 million compared with $3.1 million for the same quarter of
last year.

Diluted earnings per share for the quarter were up 63 percent to $0.44 on 13.7 million weighted
average number of shares outstanding, compared with $0.27 on 11.8 million shares for the first
quarter of 1999. Basic earnings per share for the quarter were $0.51 on 12.0 million weighted
average number of shares outstanding, compared with $0.28 on 11.3 million shares for the first
quarter of 1999.

NICE Systems chairman, Benny Levin, said, "Weare very pleased with these excellent resultsand
are encouraged by the increased demand for our products acrossal market segments, particularly
in mainland Europe, the UK, and North America. We have continued to strengthen our leadership
position in the fast growing contact center market, are seeing increased demand from the financia
trading sector and have secured our dominance of the air traffic control sector with important new
contracts."

Levin continued, "In addition, we are ddighted to report Sgnificant gainsin the CCTV security
market with aramp up in ordersfor our NICEVision digita video recording system. With NICE
winning mgor contracts across its key market segments, including Fortune 500 companies,
correctiond facilities, trangportation and casinos, and the growing interest in our product offering,
we are well-postioned to take advantage of these huge market opportunities.”

* * %

Levin concluded, "The srong momentum generated in Q1 combined with our strengthened
partnerships with Lucent Technologies and IPC Information Systems, new aliance with Philips
Business Communications, new grategic relationships with Clarify and other key CRM-customer
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rel ationship management vendors, recent acquisition of CenterPoint Solutions and the devel opment

of our Voice over |P technology and other multimedia gpplications, provides an excellent garting

point for 2000." (Emphasis added.)

17.  Thispressreease was maeridly fase and mideading. The Company has now admitted
that these results overstated revenues for the first quarter of fisca 2000 by at least $3.5 million. The
overstatement was caused by, among other things, theimproper recognition of material amounts of revenue
on contingent “sales’ in violation of GAAP.

18. In NICE Systems Annua Report on Form 20-F for fisca 1999, filed with the SEC on
May 26, 2000 and signed by defendant Levin, NI CE represented the following with respect to itsrevenue
recognition practices.

Revenues from NicelLog and other recording and quaity management products are generdly

recognized upon shipment to customers when no significant vendor obligationsremain. Generdly,
the Company does not have any significant obligations after shipment.

* * *

Revenues from COMINT systems, as well as from long-term voice recording projects, are
recognized over the term of the project on a percentage of completion basis and, therefore, may
fluctuate and affect saleslevelsin any particular quarter.

* * *

NICE' s Consolidated Financial Statements are stated in dollars and prepared in accordance
with U.S. GAAP. (Emphasis added).

19. In a“Letter to the Shareholders’ authored by defendant Levin and Micky Golan, NICE's
Chief Technology Officer, included in the Annuad Report on Form 20-F, Levin stated:

We are pleased to report an excellent year. Steady increases in revenues, gross and operating
margins, net income and earnings per share (EPS) were generated by high profile sdesto the US
contact center market, reinforced by continued successin established markets. Revenuesfor 1999
were $123.6 million, as compared with $91 millionin 1998. Net income, excluding theone-time
chargerdated to our acquisition of STS Software Systems, totaled $20.3 million, as compared with
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$13.5 million in 1998 (net of the one-time chargein 1998 related to the acquisition of IBSand the
Company’ s relocation to new premises). Earnings per share were $1.65 (diluted) as compared
with $1.12 (diluted) in 1998 (both net of one-time charges).

20.  Asstforthin 14, the Company’ sfinancia resultsfor fiscal 1999, asdisclosed inthe press
release issued on February 16, 2000 and repeated in the Report on Form 20-F, were materialy faseand
mideading and overdated revenues by at least $6.2 million.

21. On May 31, 2000, NICE Systems announced that Moshe Rohan, who joined the
Company as President and Chief Executive Officer on May 1, 2000, had resigned from the Company due
to “adifferent view of management responsbilities.” According to the pressrelease, defendant Levin re-
assumed the position of President and CEO of NICE Systems.

22.  OnAugust 2, 2000, NICE Systemsissued apressreleaseentitled,” NICE Systems 2Q00
Revenues Up 50 Percent to a Record High of $42.9 Million, Net Income Increased 60 Percent Before
One-time Charge.” The press release stated, in part:

NICE SystemsLtd. (NASDAQ: NICE), aworldwide leader of multimedia recording solutions,

applicationsand related professional servicesfor businessinteraction management, today reported

second quarter revenues rose 50 percent to arecord high of $42.9 million compared with $28.5

million for the second quarter of 1999. Earnings per share for the quarter were $0.50, before a

one-time charge, compared with earnings per share of $0.36 for the second quarter of 1999.

Net income rose 60 percent to $6.9 million from $4.3 million for the same quarter last yesr,

exduding a one-time charge related to the acquigition of CenterPoint Solutions in-process

technology. Including the one-time charge of $6.8 million, net income for the quarter was $0.1

million.

* * *

NICE Systems chairman and chief executive officer, Benny Levin, said, "We are pleased with our
excellent top and bottom line results for the quarter. NICE's sdles to the high-end contact center
and financid trading markets show solid and continuous growth. Our growth continuesto bedriven
by an increesing number of globa customers who sdlect NICE for our worldwide presence,
support and professiona services.




"Thisquarter we launched the new Customer Experience Management (CEM) initiative, wherewe
introduced new products and sol utions and announced expanded partnershipswith leedingindusry
vendors. Thisnew CEM platform will enable companiesto utilize al information captured during
customer interactionsto improvether businesses, gain customer loydty, and develop asustainable
competitive advantage. We al so successfully integrated our latest acquisition, CenterPoint Solutions,
into our CEM divison.”

Levin continued, "The NICEVision sdes are gpproaching our god of representing close to 10
percent of corporate revenues. Wewon new contractsfor NICEVision, our digital video recording
solution, with globa telecommunications providers, and continued to expand in the corporate
facilities, correctiona indtitutions, hospitals and transportation markets."

* * *

Levin concluded, "Our srong results continue to reflect the growing demand in each of our key
market segmentsand our ahility to capitalize on globa customer opportunities™ (Emphasisadded).

23. This press rease was materidly fase and mideading. The Company has now admitted
that these results overstated revenues for the second quarter of fiscal 2000 by at least $3.9 million. The
overgatement was caused by, among other things, theimproper recognition of materia amounts of revenue
on contingent “sdes’ in violaion of GAAP.

24. On October 4, 2000, NICE Systems announced that Lauri A. Hanover would replace
defendant Yana asthe Company’s Senior Vice President and CFO effective December 2000.

25. On November 1, 2000, NICE Systems issued a press release entitled, “NICE Systems
3Q00 Revenues and EPS Reach a Record High.” The press release stated, in part:

NICE Systems (Nasdag: NICE), a worldwide leader of multimedia digital recording solutions,

gpplicationsand related professional servicesfor businessinteraction management, today reported

a46 percent increasein Q3 revenuesto reach arecord high of $46.6 million compared with $32.0
million for the third quarter of 1999. Earnings per share for the quarter were $0.58 compared with

earnings per share of $0.46 in the third quarter of 1999.

Net income rose 42 percent to $8.1 million from $5.7 million for the same quarter last year. Gross

margin was 58.6 percent, as compared with 57.9 percent for the same quarter of 1999. Operating
income rose 56 percent to $6.8 million from $4.3 million for Q3 1999.
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NICE Systems chairman and chief executive officer, Benny Levin, said, 'We are pleased to
announce another strong quarter. Were seeing continued progress in our CEM (Customer

Experience Management) business, with sdes to the contact center market increasing by
approximately 15 percent from the previous quarter. We are aso pleased to see an increase in
sdes to internationa markets, in particular Europe and Japan, which reflects our growing globa

presence. Our true competitive advantage is our comprehensive CEM platform which integratesa
wide range of recording, quality management and dataandysis applicationswith CRM (Customer
Rdationship Management) software, communications infrastructures and other business
goplications.”

Levin continued, "Were adso seeing srong growth in sdes from our VIM (Visud Interaction
Management) divison which establishes NICE as one of the leading vendors driving the trangition
from andog to digitd recording. In thisquarter alone, weve sgned up 33 new customersand have
formed key draegic dliances with top security companies such as Dell Security Group and
Security Technologies Group. The VIM business contributed approximately 10 percent to our
revenues in the last nine months.” (Emphasis added).

26. OnNovember 1, 2000, NICE Systemsasoissued apressrelease announcing itsintention
to acquire the assets of Stevens Communications. According to the release:

NICE Systems (Nasdag: NICE), a worldwide leader of multimedia digital recording solutions,
gpplications and related professona services, today announced that it is expanding the customer
and support services of its Customer Experience Management (CEM) divison through the
acquisition of certain assets and liabilities of Stevens Communications, Inc (SCI).

"This purchase represents an opportunity for NICE significantly expand our customer service
organization in North America and strengthen our relationship with mgor customers,” said Yuva
Ofek, presdent of NICE's CEM division.

As part of the acquired assets, NICE will integrate SCI employees, specidizing in NICE's
products, into the company's CEM division in North America. In addition, SCI sdes and service
contracts with NICE customers will be assigned to NICE.

"We are pleased to add the new people to our growing organization. Stevens people have gained
sgnificant experience sdling, ingdling, supporting and consulting on NICE sysemsand gpplications
over thelast severd years,” Ofek added. "Thisadditiona support and consulting staff will enableus
to meet the growing demand in both the US and internationa markets and help us ddliver the high
levels of support and service that our customers have come to expect.”

Stevens Communicationswill continueto provide contact center customerswith other technologcd
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solutions and services.

Subject to the closing of the dedl, NICE will acquire the above mentioned assets of Stevens
Communications for gpproximately $10.5 million in cash and up to 426,852 NICE American
Depositary Shares (ADSs), representing ordinary shares of NICE, of which 225,839 are
contingent on achieving the agreed upon objectives. The ded is expected to be closed by next
month. (Emphasis added).

27.  OnNovember 1, 2000, NICE Systemsaso held aconferencecdl for andysts, money and
portfolio managers, inditutiona investors and large NICE Systems shareholders in which NICE
management discussed the Company’s Q3 2000 results, its business and its prospects. The Company
provides an audio recording of that conference cal on its website: www.nice.com.

28.  The Company’s November 1, 2000 earnings release and representations regarding Q3
2000 earningswere materiadly faseand mideading. The Company has now admitted that itsresultsfor the
third quarter of fiscal 2000 overstated revenuesby at least $1.6 million. The overstatement was caused by,
among other things, the improper recognition of materid amounts of revenue on contingent “sdes’ in
violaion of GAAP.

29.  On December 7, 2000, NICE Systems announced that it had compl eted the acquisition of
the assets and liabilities of Stevens Communications. According to Yuva Ofek, presdent of NICE's
Customer Experience Management (*CEM”) division:

| am ddighted that we have completed the integration of Stevens Communications assets into the

company. Stevens people have extensve sdling, ingaling, and consulting experience on NICE

solutions that will enable us to meet the growing demand for our CEM (Customer Experience

Management) technology platform and business srategy in North America. This acquidtion

represents animportant step in our commitment to ddliver the high levelsof support and servicethat

our customers have come to expect.”

30. On December 28, 2000, NICE Systemsissued apressrel ease regarding itsfourth quarter

2000 results. The release gated, in part:
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NICE Systems (Nasdag: NICE - news), a worldwide leader of multimedia digital recording
solutions, gpplicationsand related professiona servicesfor businessinteraction management, today
announced that fourth quarter 2000 revenueswill be below market expectations. Revenuesin the
fourth quarter are expected to be gpproximatedly $39 to $40 million. As aresult, the Company
expects to report a net loss of $0.06 to $0.00 per share on a diluted basis, excluding charges
related to the previoudy announced acquisition of certain assets of Stevens Communications Inc.

Benny Levin, NICE's Chairman and CEQO, said, “Like many other companies, we are seeing
weaknessin the telecommunicationsand I T sectors of the market. 1t now appearsthat anumber of
our blue-chip customerswill postpone orders, which were expected to closein the quarter, dueto
interna budget consderations. Weare obvioudy disappointed with theimpact of thisdowdown on
our Q4 results. However, we remain vigoroudy confident in our long-term growth opportunities.”

The Company plansto report final resultsfor the fourth quarter and fisca year 2000 on February

21, 2001. Management is re-evaluating the outlook for 2001 and intends to provide additiona

detalls and further guidance prior to that date.

31l.  Theserepresentations were materidly false and mideading because they failed to disclose
that the Company’s financid results for fisca 1999 and the first three quarters of fiscal 2000 were
overdated by materid amounts due to the improper recognition of revenue on, among other things,
contingent “sales” In addition, the release failed to disclose that Q400 results would be subgantidly less
than $39-40 million.

32. On January 10, 2001, the Jerusalem Post reported that Lior Arussy, a Senior Vice
Presdent for marketing, based in the Company U.S. headquartersin Secaucus, New Jersey represented

that NICE Systems was contemplating the sdle of the Company. According to Arussy,

“We owe it to the market to put a plan in place. Everythingisbeing consdered, though we don't
want to sl.”

“The deds were pulled literdly a the last moment. We have to adjust our business moded
accordingly and that’s part of what Haim [Shani] is doing right now by vigiting our customers.”

33.  On thisannouncement, NICE Systems ADS s rose approximately 10%.
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34.  OnFebruary 1, 2001, in response to the persistent market talk that the Company was a
takeover target for Comverse Technology Inc., NICE Systems, announced that it was not intalk sto merge
with another company or be acquired. In addition, NICE Systems announced: “ The company iscompleting
a thistimeaglobd plan for 2001 that includesareduction in the company'sworkforceinitsofficesin Isradl
and abroad as well as an expangon of its activitiesin different geographic aress”

35.  This rdease was maeridly fase and mideading in that it faled to disclose that the
Company’s financia results for fisca 1999 and the firgt three quarters of fiscal 2000 were overstated by
materia amountsdueto theimproper recognition of revenue on, among other things, contingent “saes.” In
addition, the release failed to disclose that Q400 results would be subgtantidly lessthan $39-40 million as
reported in the December 28, 2000 press release.

36.  OnFebruary 8, 2001, NICE Systems shocked the market when it issued a press release
which stated:

NICE Systems (NASDAQ:NICE - news), a worldwide leader of multimedia digita recording

solutions, gpplications and related professiond services for business interaction management,

announced today that it is updating its estimate of Q4 2000 revenue and rel ated net lossand will be
restating certain prior periods based on a detailed andysis performed in the course of the yearend
closing process.

This andysisincluded the determination of the appropriate timing of revenue recognition relating to

sdes to Stevens, the distributor whose assets were acquired by NICE in the fourth quarter.

Specificaly, during the yearend closing process, documents came to the attention of management

indicating that sales to Stevens should have been trested as “consgnment” sdes and the revenue

recognized only upon sdeto thefina customer. This requires areduction of $6.2 millionin 1999

revenue, from $123.6 million to $117.4 million. Of the $6.2 million, $4.4 million has been

recognized in 2000. In turn, $6.6 million in revenue from Stevensin 2000 cannot be recognized.

The net effect on year 2000 revenue is $2.2 million.

In addition to acompletereview of revenue, the Company alsoimplemented SAB101. Asaresult

of dl thesefactors, revised revenuefor thefirst three quarters of 2000 isexpected to be asfollows:
$34 million ingtead of $37.5 million, $39 millioninstead of $42.9 million, and $45 million instead of
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$46.6 million, respectively. Findly, NICE estimates that revenue for dl of 2000 will be $154
million and Q4 revenue will be approximately $36 million. On December 28th, the Company
announced that Q4 2000 revenue was expected to be $39 to $40 million

The Company indicated that it will take some additiona time to caculate the related adjustments
required to each period's net income, and the revised figures will be available when find audited
results for Q4 and full year 2000 are announced. NICE dso announced that Benny Levin has
resgned as Chairman, but remains as adirector of the Company. The Board of Directors expects
to name anew chairman shortly.

* * %

The company aso indicated that its board of directors today ratified comprehensive operating
initiatives aimed at building the infrastructure to support the company's next stage of growth and
increese its operating efficiency. The initiatives include consolidation of operations, severd
organizationd changes including a 20% net reduction in headcount from the current level of about
1,100 people, and the redlocation of resources to expand its globa presence and customer
support. The bulk of these changes will be implemented during the first quarter 2001. These
initiatives are expected to result in annud cost savings of et least $18 million.

NICE indicated that first quarter revenues are being severely impacted by the disruption of the
reorganization and are not likely to exceed $25 million and that it will probably report an operating
lossof at least $15 million. The Company dso indicated that itsgod isto report amuch smdler loss
in Q2 and to return to a profitable “steady state” by the end of Q4. “The initiatives announced
today will enable usto capitdize on our many strengths aswell asimprove execution” said NICE
Systems President and CEO Haim Shani. “The fundamenta characteristics of NICE developed
through Benny's leadership including outstanding people, leading market position, a superior

product portfolio and an extensive base of top-notch customers represent a strong foundation on
whichto build. After adeep lossin the current quarter, our god isto regain our momentum quickly
and report revenues this year that are at least even with 2000, and to grow at least asfast asthe
market thereafter.”

37.  Thisstunning disclosure caused NICE Systems’ stock to declineamost 30%inoneday on
heavy trading volume to $13.10.
38. Each of the statements made by defendants between February 16, 2000 and February 7,
2001 were false or mideading when issued. The true facts, which were known to defendants, were:
@ NICE Systems reported results for fiscal 1999 and the firdt three quarters of
fisca 2000 were materidly fase and mideading;
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(b) NICE Systems' revenue and EPS would fdl maeridly short of medting its
forecasted results as aresult of newly implemented accounting regulations, which defendants had known
were going into affect and would impact its 1999 and 2000 results and would prevent NICE from
recording revenue on product which had not sold through to end users,

(© NICE Systems' ahility to meet even the projected results, including profitability,
was contingent upon its ability to improperly recognize revenue;

(d) Asaresult of (a)-(c) above, it wasimpossible for defendants to achieve

projected revenues.

DEFENDANTS FALSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
39. Inorder toinflate the price of NICE Systems ADS's, defendants caused the Company to

fadsdy report itsresultsfor fiscal 1999 and thefirst three quarters of fisca 2000through the use of improper
revenue recognition practices. Absent the Company'simproper revenue recognition, NICE Systemswould
have reported materidly lower revenues and higher lossesin fisca 1999 and thefirst three quartersof fiscd
2000. The financid resultsfor fisca 1999 wereincluded in the Company’ s Annua Report on Form 20-F
filed with the SEC on May 26, 2000 and were included in press releases disseminated to the public.
Ultimately, NICE Systems reveded that its results for 1999 and the first three quarters of 2000 were
materidly misstated, and that the Chairman of its Board of Directors had resigned.

40.  Asset forth above, NICE Systemsrestated its revenuesfor fisca 1999 and thefirst three

quarters of 2000 asfollows:*

! The Company has not yet disclosed the net income effect of its restatement of fiscal 1999 and the first three quarters
of fiscal 2000.
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Previoudy

Reported Restated
Revenues Revenues
Fiscal 1999 $123.6 million $117.4 million
Q1 2000 $37.5million $34 million
Q2 2000 $42.9 million $39 million
Q3 2000 $46.6 million $45 million

41. NICE Systems has now admitted that these financid results may have been materidly
misstated such that they were not a fair presentation of NICE Systems' results and were presented in
violation of GAAP and SEC rules.

42.  GAAP are those principles recognized by the accounting profession as the conventions,
rulesand procedures necessary to define accepted accounting practice at aparticular time. SEC Regulation
S-X (17 C.F.R. §210.4-01(3)(1)) satesthat financid statementsfiled with the SEC which are not prepared
in compliance with GAAP are presumed to be mideading and inaccurate, despite footnote or other
disclosure. Regulation S-X requiresthat interim financid satementsmust aso comply with GAAP, withthe
exception that interim financid statements need not include disclosure which would be duplicative of
disclosures accompanying annua financia statements. 17 C.F.R. §210.10-01(a).

43. Dueto the accounting improprieties described herein, the Company presented itsfinancia
results and statementsin a manner which violated GAAP, including the following fundamenta accounting
principles.

@ The principle that interim financia reporting should be based upon the same
accounting principles and practices used to prepare annua financia statements was violated (APB No.
28, 1110);

(b) The principle that financid reporting should provide information thet is useful to
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present and potentia investors and creditors and other usersin making rationa investment, credit and
smilar decisons was violated (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 1, 134);

(© The principle that financid reporting should provide information about the
economic resources of an enterprise, the claims to those resources, and effects of transactions, events
and circumstances that change resources and claims to those resources was violated (FASB Statement
of Concepts No. 1, 140);

(d) The principle that financia reporting should provide information about how
management of an enterprise has discharged its sewardship respongbility to owners (stockholders) for
the use of enterprise resources entrusted to it was violated. To the extent that management offers
securities of the enterprise to the public, it voluntarily accepts wider responsibilities for accountability to
prospective investors and to the public in general (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 1, 150);

(e The principle that financia reporting should provide information about an
enterprisg's financial performance during a period was violated. Investors and creditors often use
information about the past to help in assessing the prospects of an enterprise. Thus, athough investment
and credit decisons reflect investors expectations about future enterprise performance, those
expectations are commonly based at least partly on evauations of past enterprise performance (FASB
Statement of Concepts No. 1, 142);

® The principle that financid reporting should be reliable in thet it represents what
it purports to represent was violated. That information should be reliable aswell asrelevant isanotion
that is central to accounting (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 2, §158-59);

()] The principle of completeness, which means that nothing is left out of the
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information that may be necessary to insure that it validly represents underlying events and conditions
was violated (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 2, 179); and
(h The principle that conservatism be used as a prudent reaction to uncertainty to

try to ensure that uncertainties and risks inherent in business Stuations are adequately consdered was
violated. The best way to avoid injury to investorsisto try to ensure that what is reported represents
what it purports to represent (FASB Statement of Concepts No. 2, 1195, 97).

44, Further, the undisclosed adverse information concedled by defendants during the Class
Period is the type of information which, because of SEC regulations, regulations of the nationa stock
exchanges and customary businesspractice, isexpected by investors and securities andyststo be disclosed
andisknown by corporate officiasand their legd and financia advisorsto bethetype of informationwhich

is expected to be and must be disclosed.

SCIENTER
45, Defendants Levin and Yana knew of or recklessly disregarded the fraud detailed herein.

They knew that NICE Systems financid statements were fraudulent and not consistent with U.S. GAAP.
Because of their pogitionswith the Company, they controlled and/or possessed the power and authority to
control the contents of the financia statements, press releases and presentations to securities andysts and
thereby the investing public. The defendants prepared or were provided with copies of the Company's
pressreleases dleged herein to be mideading prior to or shortly after their issuance and had the ability and
opportunity to prevent their issuance or cause them to be corrected.

46. Each of the defendants is lidble as a primary violator, for making materidly fase and

mideading statements, and for participating in a fraudulent scheme that operated as a fraud or deceit on
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purchasers of NICE Systems ADSsduring the ClassPeriod. The defendants pursued a fraudulent scheme
in furtherance of their common god, i.e., inflating the price of NICE Systems ADSsby making materialy
fase and mideading statements and concealing materia adverse information. The fraudulent scheme was
designed to and did: (i) deceive the investing public, including plaintiffs and members of the dass; (ii)
atificidly inflate the price of NICE Systems ADS's during the Class Period; (iii) dlow NICE Systemsto
acquire other companies udng its atificaly inflaled ADSs as currency; and (iv) cause plaintiffs and
members of the class to purchase Nice Syslems ADSs at inflated prices.

47.  Thedefendantsaso possessed the motive and opportunity to commit thefraud. Defendants
were motivated to atificidly inflate the price of NICE Systems ADSSs in order to accomplish two
acquisitions (CenterPoint and Stevens Communications) during the Class Period, in which NICE Systems
ADSswere used as partial consideration.

48. By reason of theforegoing, the defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Adt
and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder and are liable to plaintiffs and the other members of the classfor
the subgtantial damages which they suffered in connection with their purchase of NICE Systems ADSs

during the Class Period.

CLASSACTION ALLEGATIONS
49.  Thisisaclassaction on behdf of purchasersof NICE Sysems ADS s between February

16, 2000 and February 7, 2001 (the"Class"). Excluded from the Class are the defendants and officersand
directors of the Company, aswell astheir familiesand thefamilies of the defendants. Classmembersareso

numerous that joinder of them isimpracticable.
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50.  Commonquestionsof law and fact predominate and include whether defendants (i) violated
the 1934 Act; (ii) omitted and/or misrepresented materid facts; (iii) knew or recklessy disregarded that
ther satements were fse; and (iv) atificidly inflated NICE Systems stock price and the extent of and
appropriate measure of damages.

51. Paintiff’ sclamsaretypica of those of the Class. Prosecution of individud actionswould
cregte arisk of incondstent adjudications. Plaintiffs will adequately protect the interests of the Class. A

classaction issuperior to other available methodsfor the fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy.

COUNT I:

For Violations Of Section 10(b) Of
The Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 Against Defendants

52. Paintiff repeats and redleges each and every dlegation contained in the above paragraphs,

as if fully set forth herein.  Throughout the Class Period, defendants, singly and in concert, directly or
indirectly, engaged in acommon plan, scheme and course of conduct described herein, pursuant to which
they knowingly or recklesdy engaged in acts, transactions, practices and a course of business which
operated as a fraud upon plaintiff and the other members of the class, made various fase satements of
materid facts and omitted to state materia facts to make the Satements made, in light of the circumstances
inwhich they were made, not mideading; and employed manipulative or deceptive devices and contrivances
in connection with the sde of NICE Systems ADSS.

53.  The purpose and effect of the defendants plan, scheme and course of conduct was to
atificidly inflate and maintain the market price of NICE Sysems ADSs.

54. Defendants Levin and Yana as senior officers and/or directors of NICE Systems, had

actua knowledge of the material omissionsand/or thefasgty of the materia statements set forth above, and
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intended to deceive plaintiffs and the other members of the class, or, in the dternative, acted with reckless
disregard for the truth when they failed to ascertain and disclose the true facts in the statements made by
them or other NICE Systems personnd to the SEC, plaintiffs, and other members of the class.

55.  Asareault of the foregoing, the market price of NICE Sysems ADSs was attificidly
inflated during the Class Period. Inignorance of thefasty of the reports and statements, and the deceptive
and mani pulative devices and contrivances employed by the defendants, plaintiffsand the other members of
the classrdlied, to their damage, on the reports and statements described above and/or the integrity of the
market price of NICE Systems ADS's during the Class Period in purchasing the ADS's at priceswhich
were atificidly inflated as a result of the defendants false and mideading statements.

56. Had plaintiff and the other members of the classknown of the materid adverseinformation
which the defendants did not disclose, they would not have purchased NICE Systems ADSs at the
atificidly inflated prices thet they did.

57.  Asareault of thewrongful conduct dleged herein, plaintiff and other members of the class

have suffered damagesin an amount to be established at trid.

COUNT 11

For Violation Of Section 20(a)
Of The Securities Exchange Act
Againgt Defendants L evin and Yanai

58. Paintiff repeeats and realleges each and every dlegation above asif fully set forth herein.

59. DefendantsLevinand Yana by virtue of their postionsasofficersand/or directorsof NICE
Systems and their specific acts, were controlling persons of NICE Systems within the meaning of Section

20(a) of the Exchange Act.
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60. Each of these defendants positions made them privy to, and provided them with actua
knowledge of, the materia factswhich NICE Systems concealed from plaintiffs and the other members of
the class during the Class Period.

61.  Thesedefendantshad the power, authority and influence, and exercised the same, to cause
NICE Systems to engage in the unlawful conduct and practices complained of herein by causng NICE
Systems to disseminate the false and mideading information referred to above.

62. By virtue of the foregoing, defendants Levin and Y ana have violated Section 20(a) of the
Exchange Act. Asadirect and proximate resut of these defendants wrongful conduct, plaintiff and the
other members of the class suffered damagesin connection with their purchase of NICE Systems ADSs

during the Class Period.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, on behdf of himsdf and the Class, pray for judgment as follows:

A. Declaring this action to be a class action properly maintained pursuant to Rule 23 of the
Federd Rules of Civil Procedure;

B. Awarding plaintiff and other members of the Class damagestogether with interest thereon;

C. Awarding plaintiff and other members of the Class costs and expenses of this litigation,
including reasonabl e attorneys fees, accountants fees and experts feesand other costs and disbursements;,
and

D. Awarding plaintiff and other members of the Class such equitable/injunctive or other and

further relief as may be just and proper under the circumstances.
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Maintiff demands atrid by jury.

DATED: March 1, 2001

JURY DEMAND
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